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I,. ﬂ.lé‘. {:umpla,inané in this case, state that the following iz true to %ﬁ%ﬁ%@%ﬁe and

belief.
Beginning no later than in or around 2017 and uunﬁnuing through in or around 2018, at Chicago,

in 1he Northern Digtrict of Ilinois, BEastern Division, and elsewhere, the defendant violated:
Code Sectivn |

Title 18, United States Code, Scction did knowingly attempt to ecommit extortion, which

1951 exturtion would obstruct, delay and affect
commerce, in that defendant attempted to obtain
property, namely, fees arising from the retention of
his law firm, Klafter & Burke, {10 be puaid by
Company A and iig affiliate, with the consent of
Company A and its affiliate, induced by the
wrongiil use of sctusl and threatened fear of
ceonamie havm, and under color of official right

{Yfenze Deseription

This criminal complaint is based upon thesze facts:

X Continued on the attached sheet,

KDWALRD W, McNAMARA
Sperinl Agent
Federal Buroaw of Investigation
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swori to before moe and signed in my presence.

Diate: Janmary 2, 2019

City and state: Chicago, lllinnis
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CLERK, LS, DISTRICT COURT
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TLLINCGIS "
AFFIDAVIT
I, EDWARD W. MeNAMARA, being duly sworn, staie as follows:
1 I am 4 Special Agent with the Federal Bureau of _l_m-*eﬂt.igatinn, and have
been so cmployed since approximately 1992, My current responsibilities include the

* investigation of public corruption offenses. | have investigated, among others, cases

involving attempting, by extortion, to obstruel and affeet commerce, in violation of Title

18, ['nited States Code, Section 1951, Dharing my tenure as an FBI Special Agent, I_have-.

been involved in various types of electronic surveillance, physical surveillanee, and the
exeention of search warrants.

2. I have hecn involved in the investiga,.tiun of FDWARD M. BURKE
concerning his involvement in vielations of federal law, including violations of Title 18,
Unijted States Code, Seetion 1951,

3. The informalion eontained in tiﬁts AfTidavit iz based on my pa..rtici pation in
- this inveétigatiun;. agents’ roview ui couri-authorized interceptions | of wire
.cnmmuni(:&tions; the regnlts of physical suwrveillance; wilnegs interviews; review of
records U.ht_ﬂ.ined firom various putties; discussions with other law enforcement agents
with knowledge of this invéﬂtigm,iu:m; my training snd experience; and the training and
cxperience of other law enforeement officers with whom I have consulted. Since this

Affidavit is being submitted for the lmiled purpose of establishing probable cause as set
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forth herein, I have not included cach and every fscl known to me concerning this
investigation.
AL This Affidavit is made for the purpose of cstablishing probable cause in

support of a complaint charging TDWARD M, BURKE with Ia.t-tempi;iﬁg; by extnrti;nn,

to ohstruct snd affec), commeree, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Seetion 1951,

h. Reference iz made to lm&_rﬂally vecorded eonversations in thig affidavit. In
certain instances, these cnnverau.ﬁuna are summarized and placed in eontext. My
understanding of these conversations (which olten appears in brackets) is aided by the
content and eontext of the converszations, my familiarity with the facts und circumstances
of this investigation, my cxperience us a law en‘l’:’m.‘_cnmént officer, the experience of other
law enforcement agents and officers in this investigation, my disenssions with other law
enforeement  officers, "and Di;hﬂl“ avidence 'deve]npcd during the .umlrse of this
inv_eﬂtigz_a.tiun. The L.Emes listed for recorded conversations are approximste. Further,
sumnmaries of the vecorded conversations herein do not represent ﬁn_zﬂized trangeripty
and may not represent the cntire conversalion that nmmcd between the identiﬁr&gd
individuals.

I. Summary of Probable Canse

fi, There is probable cause to believe that KDWARLD M, BURKE, an

Alderman for the City of Chicago, has engaped in attemipled extortion in violatlon of Title
18, United States Code, Section 1951, Specifically, in 2017, Company A sought permission
from the Cily of Chicago to remodel a restaurant, and Company A sought BURKE's

support for the building permit for this remodcling project. In June 2017, BURKE
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arranged to meet with Individual A und lndividﬁal E, Lwo exeéﬁt&ves from Company A,
and uged his position as an Alderman—inchading hig appz.trent ability to withhold his
official support (or the building permit and a rélated driveway permit—in order to
corruptly solicit uniawful personal financial ad}'a,nta.ge in the form of fées arizing from the

retention of BURKE’s law firm, Klafter & Burke, by Company A and its affiliates.

[ndividusl A understood that RURKE solicited Lhis husiness in exchange for BURKE's

help and gupport with obtaining the permits for the restaurant remodeling.

7. After this meeting; Company A did n.mi; deliver business to BURKE's law
firm as BURKE requested, 1o BURKE planned with Ward Employee 1 tn.l'jla}f “hard
ball” with Company A and ils execuﬁvea, in order to foree Company A to award tax

business to BURKE’s law firm, Tn Oetober 2017, at BURKEs direction, Ward Employee

1 cansed remodeling work on the restaurant to ¢come to a halt on the prelext that the -

restaurant did ﬁnt. possess all necessary permils for the remodeling, and thercafter
phatructed Company A's efforls o promptly obtain a d tfivmva},r permit from the City of
Chieago’s Depﬁ.rtment of Transportalion,

8-. Through this extortivnale condnct, BURKE c-ﬂ,used Indir;'idual A and
Individual B to travel to Chieago for the purpose of meeling wi1::-h him on or about
IJem.mher 12, 2017, During that meeting, which focused on awarding tax work Lo
BURKE's law firm, BURKE received sgsurances that his iaw firm would indeed receive
tux work, and after this mecting, BURKE dropped his opposition o the issuance of o
drivewsy permit. On or sbout December 18, 2017, BURKE cunﬁrﬁed that his law firm

was Lo receive property tax work for multiple properties operated by Company A in
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1 Ilihnis, and, on that sume day, Company A received approval fL_sr a driveway permil I'vom
the Department of Transportation. Furthermore, BURKE a.ls(.r solicited a campaign
contribution from Individual A for aﬁrﬁher politician—a contribution that Individual A
felt obliged to give in order to prevenl BU _RI{E’S further interference with Compuny A’s
restaurant. After the driveway permit wuas issued, Company A completed the
remodeling of the restaurant but did not hire BURKE’s firm.
II Facts Establishing Probable Cause |

A.  Background '

9. According to public veeords as well ag my training and experience, 1 know

the following: The City of Chicago is & munieipal corporation and & municipal subdivision

of the State of Illinois. The C‘ity’é legislative branch is the City Couneil, which is

comprised of fifty aldermen, each ol whom represents one legislative district or “ward.”
Aldermen are compensated and publiely elected. The Git;,r Couneil has the authority 1o
set poliey and pass ordinances and vesolutions velated to the reépnhsihﬂities of City
gnvernrnenf. Another [unction Aldermen provide iz their official support or non-support
for real extate development, projects propoged for land in thelr 1'eﬂpec£ive \;fawls, which
gupport or non-support cun he instrumental in securing necessary gmrer:nmental action
or inaction rela.{,in_é' to the proposed projects, as well as the assistance or non-asgiglance
of third parties concerning the projects. Aldermen are assisted in their official duties by
staff members, who often ure paid City employees. Aldermen have offices within City
Hall, which is located at 121 North LaSalle Sireet in Chicago, as woll as offices within

their wards.
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10, Public vecords reflect that EDWARD M. BURKH is Alderman of ihe
Fourteenth Ward in Chieago and the Chairmun of the Oity Council's Committee on
Finance. BURKE oceupies an office at City Hall, and maintuing an office in bis ward,
loeated at 2650 West 51st Street i n Chicago.

11, Public records further reflect thut BURKE is an a.t;tm'ne.}r and & partner in
the private law firm of Klafter & Burke, which ypecializes in r;e.ai estate tax assessment
work. Publicly avaﬂable records maintained by the Aliorncy Registralion and
Discip]jﬂm:"j Commission (FARDC™) reflect lhat BURKE is licensed to practice law in
Hinois and wag admitted to practice law in 1968, BUTREE"s registercd bus;iness address
with the ARDC is Klafter & Burke, 225 West Washington Stre;éi;, Suite 1301, Chicago,
linois 60606-2418. | |

B. Company A Executives Seek BURKE’s Approval to Remodel a
~ Restaurant.

12.  Individual A has been interviewed by law enforcement, and has provided
the following information.! Ii'ndin_ridu,a.l A ig an executive for Gampan}r A, which nﬁerﬂt{zs
over one hundred fasi-food restaurants in [Mlinois, including a fast-food restaurant in
BURKE’s ward. In 2017, Company A prepared to remodel the pestarrant in BURK '
ward, and an architect engaged by Company A woright a building permit from the City of

Chieago’s Department of Buildings to rermodel the restaurant.

! Individual A and Individual B were approached by law enforcement after the events
dizeussed hevein cecnrred. Individnal A and Individoa! B have been advised that they are

eonsidered to be victims of RURKE" illegal activity, and they cach have been provided

with a non-target letter by the government. Tndividunal A and Individual B are related.
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12. FEmail communications obtained {rom [ndividual A, as well. a¢ Trom
Inflividual B, anuther Company A executive, rellect that Company A’y archileet advised
individual B on multiple ﬂ.r;casiuns in or avout] May 2017 and June 2017, thal:; before o
building permit conld be issued, Company A would need to receive a signed ﬁldel'mﬂ..nic
: ﬂcknuwledg‘ement Letter from BURKR. The architeet provided Individual B with a
form Aldermanic Acknowledpment Lelier, to be signed by BURK_E, which providad, in
part: “1 am aware of the application for a building permit at the fvllowing address, Thave
no ohjection to its issuance.™ The architect advised that BURKE wanted 1o meet with
Individnal 13 to discuse trucks parking in the restawrant parking lot.

14, * During the course of the investigation of BURKE, the Chiel Judge and
Acting Chief Judge of the United Slates Distriet Court for the Northern Dislriet of
Tlinvis entered orders authorizing | the interception of wire communications over
telephone number (812) KXK-LIGIDG, # celluiar telephone used by BURKE (the “Target
Phone"). The recorded telephone convergations over .the Target Phone referenced

herein were made pursnant to these orders®

z Rased on information provided hy 8 Department of Buildings supervisor, I know that for

the remodeling project a signed Aldermunie Acknowledgement Letter is not a -

prevequigite Lo the izsnance of 4 building permit, bul iz inclided in the permit package
that the Department of Buildings provides for projects Hke the vemodeling of the

restaurant, and will serve to secelerate the proceszing of the permit by redueing a ten-
duy waiting period that the Department of Buildings chacrves prior to isanance of such a
petrnit,

B BURKW was identified as the uzcr of the Target Phone by, amung othor things, sell-
identification during the eourse of telephone calls, 88 well us comparison of the voiee of the
uzer of Target Phone wilh publicly available reeordings of BURKE. Individual A and
Individual B were identilied throngh varions means, including seli-identification.



15. | On or about Klay 28, 2017, al approximutely 5:12 pan (Session :]'JLHD’E';I,
BURKE received a voicerail on the Target Phone from Individual A regarding the
building pérmit. Specifically, Individual A gaid, “TF ydu could pleaze give me a call whet
you get a minute, when you get a chanee, [phone number redacted] Ah, we have an

" application that’s been made for rembd_el and [ think it’s sttek in your office or something,
S0, pleage give me a call, Tl pive }ruﬁ the details.”

16, On or about May 25, 2017, at app:r‘nxfm&t&ij 3:39 pm. (Sesszion #414),
BURKE received an incoming call on the Target Phone from Individual A. During the
call, BURK K and Individual A discussed tho huﬂdiné_; permit. Specifically, Individual A
said, “Ah, one of the things I was ealling zibmlt-, kd, is, ah, we huve a remodeling permil,
that we have applied for and I think itz in your m‘ea_emd, uh....” BURKE said, “Ts that
the one thal's at, ah, [address of restaurant redacted|? Tndividual A said, “Yos, yes,
ves,” BURKE suid, “Okay.” Indix:;idu:al A gald, “Hn, ah, hﬂﬂi(:&]ly, excuse me just a second,
wanl: to méet you to disensg a coneern ﬁ;ﬁth track parking that's in our parking lol.”

.HURKE said, “Yeah, that'’s been an ongoing problem there.” Individual A said, “Oh,

really? BURKE said, “Yeah. They have these big f'igﬁ that are parking f:-her'e.and |

parlking overnight aﬁd thai sort of stuff, ah, so some of the community activists are giving
me a little aggravation about it. Tell me about, ah, who's ah, w}m"_a on the ground here in
Chicago? Who's your key person?” Individual A said, “Ah, kﬂ;;r persun . ... You know
it's, ah, [Individual B|.” BURKE said, “Why don't }f.D'Ll have [Tndividual B] give me a eall
on this number, Maybe we Ldﬂ eet together next weelr and zee il we ean fron out what

the issues might be.” Individual A said, “Awesome, Sounds good.”

s "




17.° On or ahout June T, 2017, at approximately 4:32 p.m. (Session #642),

BURKE received an incoming call on the Target Phone from Individual B. During the

call, BURKE and Individual B discussed meeting about the building permit, Specifically,

BURKE said, “Well, I wag gonna snggest il you were here thal: you come out and see me

and talk about this issue 1 ndividual B waid, “Well, I'll be in, I'll, I'll be in Ghiuag(: ned
nexl week, but the following week. 8o I would love to come by and meet you and talk
ahmit things.” BURKH gaid, “Good. And [Tndividual AJ=aid thal be hoped to be up here
too and have, perhaps dinner and so thet'd be nice. Ilook forward to that . ... Um, now,

ah, is there something urgent? He mentioned gomething about permitting.” Individual

B sald, “Yes. So, we were trying to remodel a [name of restaurant| at ah—" At that

point, the eall wag minimized.

C. BURKE Plans to Obtain Private Benefits from Company A in the Form
of Fees Ariging from the Retention of His Law Firm, Klafter & Burke,

18 On or about June 8, 2017, at appruximatelj 11:47 am. (Session #932),
BURKE placed an outgoing call on the Target Phone to his City Hali office and spoke
with a City of Chicago employee on hit- gtalf (horeinafter referred to as “G‘itf Employee
1. During the call, BURKE asked City FEmployee 1 to find out what fnrivate law firm
handled real estate tax work for Company A. Specifieally, BURKE sa’ld,_“&ﬂd there's 4
Ireai.,am'ant] in the L]uca,i,i{m. I'Qdacted;]. Ah, jusl north of fstreet redacted| Strect on the

weusl side of the street.™ City Employee 1 said, “Uh-huh: Yeah,” BURKE zaid, “T want

* Rased on physical surveillanes condueled by law enforcement, I know the restaurant

operated by Company A in BUREE's ward iz located in the arca BURKE referenced

during this call. '
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somebody al the law nfﬁt_‘:e 0 check to see who's [lled with the assessor of the board on
that one.” |BURKE wunted City Employee 1 in contact his private law fiﬁn and aak
someone there toresearch what law firm mpmseﬁted the restaurant in prior ehallenges
to real estate taxes.] City Employee 1 aaid, “Omn ﬂmi'; [restaurant]? Olkay. An& Lh.at’s: the
une where yo're meeling—" BURKE said, “That’s where 'm ﬁuppnsed to be meeting
. those people next week?” City Empluyee 1 zaid, “.Yeuh, exactly.” |

19,  On ur_ahnut June 11, 2017, at approximately 12:42 P (Session #1050),
BURKE received an incoming call on the Target Phore from Individual f}.ﬁ During the
call, BURKE informed Individual C that BURKE wanted to get some business for .hig
private law firm from Individual A, Specifieally, Individual C said, “Happy Sunday, 'm
ahout to huve lunch with our friend, {Individual A), so T hope your lﬁeeting with him went:
well,” BURKE said, “Well, we haven’ met yet, Ah, he's supposed to be, ah, coming here
this coming week and we're gonna viril one of hiz sites and huve lanch.” Individual C
gaid, “Oh, good, roud, 'm aibnut to have luneh with him now. 1 know I'm in Canada after
my commisgion meeting on Tuesday, 80 I iigured if he wanted to grab laneh with me, I'd
hetter do it now. But Pl tel! him you're looking forward to it.” BURKE gaid, “Yes, and
give him the old, ah, ah. ...” Individual C said, “T'll let him know how important you are,”
BURKE said, “Well, yow're good to do that but I'd also like to get some ol hig lf_lw businces
and pel him in_vuh-ed, ah, here in, ah, in @h—” Individual C said, “Chicago,” BURKE

said, “Yeah, and, you know, he's a funintellipible] businessman here and you gotta, ah, be

F Aceording to publie sources, Individual O was a public oflicial in the aame state where -

Individual A and Individus]l B reaide,
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setive,” Individual C said, “Yeah. And he's pretty subsbantial. He's ilELE. a lot of, 2 lot of
sluff out there, right?” BURKE suid, “I hoar he's rrot 300 |restaurants] bere,” Individual
{ gaid, “TIuh. Okay, okay, yesh.,” BU RKE said, “So he's somebody you and I should,
ah—" Individeal C gaid, “Well, keep mc posted.” BURKE =said, “—try and, ah, a_h, gt
to know.” Individual ¢ =aid, “Okay. Good. Tm glad you called me about it, And, uh,
that's why I figured I'd work him. But I'll make sure he, he understunds it.” BURKE
said, “Good.” o

D. BURKE Corruptly BSolicits Tax Work for I-hs Law Fn‘m from
Individuals A and B.

20.  Individual A provided law enforcement with the following information.
Individual A and Ind ividual B agreed io meet with BURKE in Chicago because they
hoped FURKE would help with the building permit for the restawrant remodeling and
because Individual C had told Individual A that BURKE was gomeonc Indlndual A
should know. On or abooi Junc 14, 2017, individual A, Individual B and two other
.empluyees of Company A met 'w.ith BURKE and Ward Employee 17 al, the restaurant.”

During the meeting at the restaurant, BURKE Lalked ahout the fact that the City had

received complaints about Lrucks parking in an adjacent parking lot. Individual A

promised to lookinto the matter and address the issue by putting up “No Parking” signs.

¢ lased on the results of physicul surveillance, evidence seized from BURKE's ward office ,
and ecalls interecpted over the Target Phone, | know thal Ward Employee 1 works In
BURKE’s ward office,

On or about June 14, 2017, al approximately 11:85 am., law enforeement surveillance
obeerved a gronp of individualg, inetnding Individual A, Individual B, BURKE and Ward
Employce 1 meet in the area of the restaivant.

]
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BURKE alzo mentioned that » driveway permil was required for 'tilE remodeling of the
reslgurant. Individual A believed that BURKE was making up the driveway permit
issue Lo create s problem that they would have to mect with BURKE a_,bout.é

21,  Individual A furlher advised that, following the mecting at the restaurant,

 BURKE, Individual A, Individual B, and another Company A employee had lunch with

" BURKE st & country club.” BURKE avranged for the lunch. During the lineh, BURKE

told his puests about his Law firm, and expluined that his law firm handled pz-'upertj,r tax
reductions. Individual A said that s/he had not requeﬁted s pitch from BURKE about Eiﬁ
law firm, and had never mentioned to BURKU that s/he needed a property tax attorney.”
ndividual A advised BURKE that s/he had a law firm thal handled suc;h matters, hut
that Individual A would talk to another individual who haded property taxes und would
have that person reach out to BURKE. - |

922 Individual A advizsed law enforcement that Individual A “read between the
lines,” and that {L was Individuad A's understanding that BURKE.wﬂa soliciting legal

busginess in exchangoe for hiz help with permity for the restaurant.

g Tndividual B told law enforeement that BURKE hud mentioned driveway permits during .

the meeting. Individual B explained that sthe could not recall an issue about driveway
permits ever coming up tn connecllon with any other restaurant owned by Company Ain
the Chicago metropolitan area. Individual A advized law enforcement that B URKH wus
told both issties— the trock parking and the driveway permit—would be addressed.

! On June 14, 2017, at approximately 1230 p.an., surveillance observed a Blaek Crown
Vietoria in the parking lot of the Beverly Country Club, in Chieago, Illinoiz, Surveillance
had ohserved BURKE riding in this vehicle carfier that day on several oceasiong,
including at approximately 12:03 pm. Subgequent wire interceptions and seizurcs
discussed below confirin this meeting took place at the Beverly Country Clab.

1':' Individual 13 eonfirmed that BUREE’: pitch was smeolivited, and Individual B found it
odd that BURKE was sccling husiness [rom them due to his official position.
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